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1. Corporate Information 1. 2~FAEH
The principal place of business of Zhu Kuan Development Company HRABERBERAR Z EEL MR
Limited is located at 9th Floor, King Kong Commercial Centre, 9 BB BRI R SEER OIE -

Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal FACAEBEBRETINERRER -
activities:

. management of a holiday resort . BIE - EEMN

. management of a theme park ] BEE-TERQ

. management of an amusement park . BIE -5

. provision of port facilities and ticketing services . B ORERMEHE RS
. investment and property holding . REEZEBREMESE

The directors consider Zhu Kuan Company of the Zhuhai SEZ, a EFERRURPEARKNE (T
state-owned enterprise in the People’s Republic of China excluding FEBIMRP]) ([FE]) 2BEERE
Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”), to be the Company’s ultimate KERBERBEIRNE AR ASARAZ &
holding company. el /N I

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @ KAEXBREBER-LA
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2.

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) are effective for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements:

. SSAP 1 (Revised): “Presentation of financial statements”

. SSAP 11 (Revised):  “Foreign currency translation”
. SSAP 15 (Revised):  “Cash flow statements”
. SSAP 34: “Employee benefits”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure
practices. The major effects on the Group’s accounting policies and
on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements of adopting

these SSAPs are summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of financial
statements and sets out guidelines for their structure and minimum
requirements for the content thereof. The principal impact of the
revision of this SSAP is that a consolidated statement of changes in
equity is now presented on pages 34 and 35 of the financial
statements in place of the consolidated statement of recognised
gains and losses that was previously required and in place of the

Group's reserves note.

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign currency
transactions and financial statements. The principal impact of the
revision of this SSAP on the consolidated financial statements is
that the profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are now translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year,
whereas previously they were translated at the exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has
had no material effect on the financial statements. Further details
of this change are included in the accounting policy for “Foreign

currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements.
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2.

Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice (Continued)

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash flow statement.
The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP is that the
consolidated cash flow statement now presents cash flows under
three headings, cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities, rather than the five headings previously required. In
addition, cash flows from overseas subsidiaries arising during the
year are now translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions, or at an approximation thereto,
whereas previously they were translated at the exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, and the definition of cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement has been
revised. Further details of these changes are included in the
accounting policies for “Cash and cash equivalents” and “Foreign

currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements.

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria to
apply to employee benefits, together with the required disclosures
in respect thereof. The adoption of this SSAP has resulted in no
material change to the previously adopted accounting treatments
for employee benefits as at the balance sheet date. In addition,
disclosures are now required in respect of the Company’s share
option schemes, as detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.
These share option scheme disclosures are similar to the disclosures
as previously required under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and included in the Report of Directors, which are now
included in the notes to the financial statements as a consequence
of the SSAP.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Corporate update and basis of presentation

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 14 August 2003, the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) granted the appointment of
provisional liquidators to Zhu Kuan Group Company Limited (“Zhu
Kuan Macau”) and Zhu Kuan (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Zhu
Kuan (HK)”) as a result of the filing of winding-up petitions (the
“Winding-up Petitions”) by one of their creditors. Zhu Kuan Macau
and Zhu Kuan (HK) together are the controlling shareholders of the
Company, holding indirectly an aggregate equity interest of
approximately 71.7% in the Company.

The appointment of the provisional liquidators to Zhu Kuan Macau
and Zhu Kuan (HK) was for the purpose of safeguarding their assets
for the benefit of the creditors in general, pending the High Court’s
decision as to whether winding-up orders would be made on Zhu
Kuan Macau and Zhu Kuan (HK).

As at the date of these financial statements, the directors understand
that (i) out of the 236 million shares (representing approximately
29.5% equity interest in the Company) beneficially held by Zhu
Kuan (HK), 235.2 million shares have been pledged to Bank of
China; and (ii) the 337 million shares (representing approximately
42.2% equity interest in the Company) beneficially held by Zhu
Kuan Macau have been pledged to Longway Services Group Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Group
Corporation. Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Group Corporation is the joint
venture partner of the Group’s jointly-controlled entity, Zhuhai High-
Speed Passenger Ferry Co., Ltd. (“Ferry Company”). These pledges
were not used as security against any of the Group’s borrowings.
Furthermore, the Group is not the subject of the Winding-up

Petitions.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Corporate update and basis of presentation (Continued)

As at 30 April 2003 and up to the date of these financial statements,
the Group has neither given financial assistance (such as loans or
guarantees) to Zhu Kuan Macau or Zhu Kuan (HK) or any of their
subsidiaries and associates, nor has the Group received any financial
assistance from Zhu Kuan Macau or Zhu Kuan (HK) or any of their
subsidiaries and associates. The major connected transactions made
between (a) the Group on the one part and (b) the group of
companies comprising Zhu Kuan Macau and Zhu Kuan (HK) and
their respective subsidiaries (other than the Group) on the other
part are certain lease arrangements under which the Group is the
lessee. The subject premises of such lease arrangements are the
Group's office and staff quarters in Hong Kong and some of the
facilities (including villas, a health centre and recreational facilities)
of Zhuhai Holiday Resort Hotel Co., Ltd.. Further details of such

transactions are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Further details concerning the above are also set out in the

Company’s press announcement dated 18 August 2003.

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the
assumption that the Group will continue to operate as a going
concern for the foreseeable future. Prior to the date of approval of
these financial statements, certain directors had a meeting with the
provisional liquidators. Save as aforesaid, the directors are not
knowledgeable as to the latest developments of the Winding-up
Petitions and cannot give assurance that the future business and
financial operations of the Group will not be significantly affected
by the Winding-up Petitions.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern as a
result of the winding-up proceedings against Zhu Kuan Macau and
Zhu Kuan (HK) brought by their creditors, adjustments would have
to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have

not been reflected in the financial statements.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
SSAPs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the remeasurement of leasehold land and buildings and
short term investments, as explained in the respective accounting

policies below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
30 April 2003. The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are consolidated from or to their effective dates
of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on

consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in

the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits

from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and
loss account to the extent of dividends received and receivables.
The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate

entity in which the Group and the other parties have an interest.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Joint venture companies (Continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of
the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture
company’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint

venture agreement.
A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,

over the joint venture company;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant influence

over the joint venture company; or

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in
a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint

venture company.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties
having unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
jointly-controlled entities is included in the consolidated profit and
loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. Where the
profit sharing ratio is different to the Group’s equity interest, the
share of post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities is
determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio. The Group’s
investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting less any impairment losses.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled entities,
which was not previously eliminated or recognised in the
consolidated reserves, is included as part of the Group’s investments

in jointly-controlled entities.

Jointly-controlled operations

Joint venture arrangements which involve the use of the assets and
other reserves of the Group and other parties, without the
establishment of a separate entity, are referred to as jointly-controlled
operations. Under these arrangements, assets remain under the
ownership and control of each party. Revenue and expenses incurred
in common are shared by the parties according to the contractual

arrangement.

Assets that the Group controls and liabilities that it incurs in relation
to jointly-controlled operations are recognised in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet on an accrual basis and are classified
according to the nature of the item. The Group’s share of the income
that it earns from jointly-controlled operations, together with the
expenses that it incurs, are included in the Group’s consolidated
profit and loss account when it is probable that the economic

benefits associated with the transactions will flow to/from the Group.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over

which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of its
associates is included in the consolidated profit and loss account
and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting less any

impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly-controlled entities represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of not exceeding 20 years. In the case
of associates and jointly-controlled entities, any unamortised
goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as

a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance sheet.

SSAP 30 “Business combinations” was adopted as at 1 May 2001.
Prior to that date, goodwill arising on acquisitions was eliminated
against consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional provision
of SSAP 30 that permitted such goodwill to remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves. Goodwill on acquisitions subsequent to 1
May 2001 is treated according to the SSAP 30 goodwill accounting

policy above.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net
assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of
goodwill which remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written back and

included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining
eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed annually and
written down for impairment when it is considered necessary. A
previously recognised impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed
unless the impairment loss was caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and
subsequent external events have occurred which have reversed the

effect of that event.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject
to common control or common significant influence. Related parties

may be individuals or corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there
is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether there is
any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an
asset in prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher

of the asset’s value in use or its net selling price.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged
to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss
account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy

for that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and loss account in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional

cost of that asset.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as movements
in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the profit and loss account. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to

retained earnings as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the

cost or valuation of each asset, after taking into account its residual

value, over the following estimated useful lives:

Medium term leasehold land Over the lease terms
outside Hong Kong

Buildings outside Hong Kong 20 years or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures, equipment, 5 to 10 years

motor vehicles, plant and

machinery, and leasehold

improvements

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of fixed assets recognised
in the profit and loss account is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred in connection
with the construction of fixed assets, and is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed assets

when completed and ready for use.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Rights to use port facilities

Rights to use port facilities are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is provided
on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the rights over the

contracted period of 40 years.

The unamortised balance of the rights to use port facilities is
reviewed at the end of each year and is written off to the extent

that the unamortised balance is no longer likely to be recovered.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
are charged to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in unlisted equity
securities intended to be held on a long term basis. Unlisted equity
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses that are
considered by the directors to be other than temporary, on an

individual basis.

The carrying amount of an individual investment is reviewed at
each balance sheet date to assess whether its fair value has declined
below the carrying amount. When such impairment has occurred,
the carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its fair value
and the amounts of the impairment is charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which it arose. When the circumstances
and events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist and
there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and events
will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment
previously charged is credited to the profit and loss account to the

extent of the amount previously charged.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Golf club memberships

Golf club memberships, which are held on a long term basis, are

stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an individual basis.

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity securities held for
trading purposes and are stated at their fair values on the basis of
their quoted market prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
investment basis. The gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of short term investments are credited or charged to the

profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise mainly food, beverages and souvenirs
for resale purposes, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs

to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which

are not restricted as to use.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the original invoiced
amount. An estimate for doubtful debts is made and deducted when
collection of the full amount is no longer considered probable. Bad

debts are written off as incurred.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all significant
timing differences to the extent it is probable that the liability will
crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not

recognised until its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured

reliably, on the following bases:

(@) service income, when the relevant services are provided;

(b) from the sale of tickets, when the tickets are sold to the
customers;

(c) from the sale of food and beverages, when the food and

beverages are provided;

(d) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and title
of the goods have been transferred to the customers, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(e) from the sale of short term listed equity investments, on a
trade date basis or at the date on which the relevant sales
contracts become or are deemed unconditional, where

appropriate;
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into
account the principal outstanding and the effective interest

rate applicable;

(g) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and
(h) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or
the maximum mandatory contributions as required by the MPF
Scheme and are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entity and associate in the PRC
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The retirement benefits scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of the PRC employees, are charged to the profit and loss account of
the entities in the period to which they relate and represent the
amount of contributions payable to the defined contribution

retirement benefits scheme.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The financial
impact of share options granted under the share option schemes is
not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recorded
in the profit and loss account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon
the exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the capital and reserves section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as
a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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3.

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at that
date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss

account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the net investment method. The profit and loss
accounts of overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and
associates are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year, and their balance sheets are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are

included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15 during the
year, as explained in note 2 to the financial statements, the profit
and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
and associates and the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries were
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has
had no material effect on the financial statements. The adoption of
the revised SSAP 15 has had no material effect on the amounts of

the previously-reported cash flows of the prior year.
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4.

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats:
(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment; and

(i) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the

business segments are as follows:

(a) the hotel business segment consists of the management of a
holiday resort hotel in Zhuhai, the PRC;

(b) the tourist attraction segment consists of the management of
a theme park and an amusement park in Zhuhai, the PRC;

(c) the provision of port facilities and ticketing services segment
provides port facilities and ticketing services in Zhuhai, the
PRC; and

(d) the corporate and other segment comprises the Group's
investment holding and trading of securities, together with

corporate expenses items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and
results are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the assets.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.
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4. Segment Information (Continued)

()

Business segments

—ETE=FWA=+H

4. DEEHR @)

(a)

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain

asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s

business segments.

Provision of port

AR
TRIVRANEBEXEBOEZ
WA -~ & (BiE) RETE
E BERXHERR-

facilities and
Hotel Tourist attraction ticketing services Corporate and other Eliminations Consolidated
REtADRIE
BE RESE REEHERK AARBREM ik - G4
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
ZERCE CRE-F ZRBCF CTTCF CBRCE CBTCF TRECE CREoF CERCE CETCF CRBCE CRICF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
B¥Fn EETn EETn ENTn EEFn ENTn BT BT EMFn ANTn BEFn Ak
Segment revenue: LN
Sales to external BENER
customers HEE 126877 159870 49,129 66268 32,631 29421 = = - — 208,637 255,559
Intersegment sales PHRHEES = = 1,003 1,254 = - = — (1,003 (1254) - =
Total a3t 126,877 159,670 50,132 67,522 32,631 29,421 - — (1,003) (1,254) 208,637 255,559
Segment results NELE 8135 (1431) (G464 7788 10,192 12,724 (10,152  (9,130) - — (13559 9949
Interest income HEHA 655 662
Profit/(loss) from mBZE IR/
operating activities (B#) (12,904 10,611
Finance costs HBER (1121 (2,158)
Share of profitsand ~ EERT R
losses of: B
Jointly-controlled R
entity - | - - - — 1428 1891 - - - — 14283 18961
Associates BEAT - - - - - - (429) (64) - — (429) (64)
Profit/(loss) before BHaER/
tax (B8) (71 27,350
Tax ik (5,389 (6,047)
Profit/(loss) hefore BogkRER
minority interests AR/ (BB (5,560) 21,303
Minority interests ShRER (845)  (1,099)
Net profit/loss) from ~ RREERE
ordinary activities B4
attributable to / (BEFH)
shareholders (6,405 20,204
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4. Segment Information (Continued) 4. DEEH @
(@)  Business segments (Continued) (@  EBHBM (&

Provision of port
facilities and

ticketing services

Hotel Tourist attraction REEE DR Corporate and other Consolidated
B g ERSHERK RARBRAM 5a
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

—gg=f -3%-fF CBEcF -3%-EF CBE=F -TT-fF CBEZF C-EE3C-F CBEZE C-TTCE
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BETT  EEFm  AETn EBFn AETn BETn AETn BETn EETn

Seqment assels SERE 300138 306391 483756 499,295 82,674 118,030 56,705 5,705 93273 975441
Interest in a jointly- RAREH
controlled entity EEER - = = = 104,303 92,576 = - 104,303 92,576
Interests in associates REERT
LER - — - - - — 2,157 586 2,157 586
Total assels AERE 1,029,733 1,068,603
Total liailities fEaE 29,986 31,289 20,835 42,196 13,989 34,728 4,968 3,302 69,778 111515
Other segment it A%
information: BH:
Depreciation and ES
amortisation £ § 17,793 17,935 27,076 24,599 1,228 1,261 254 386 46,351 44,181
Capital expenditure ARRE 6567 6,393 2,158 11,997 2273 781 = 13 10,998 19,184
Provision for BRAKE
impairment of golf SERE
club memberships e 2,580 1,290 - - - — - — 2,580 1,290
Provision for R
doubful debts AR 828 1,496 = = = = = = 828 1,49
Provision for amounts  [EMEE
due from related ALR
parties BE = = = 5,856 = = = = = 5,856
Net unrealised FEREL
holding losses less RER
gains on short term B1AE
listed equity RERH
investments hEER - - - - - - 3,442 3,203 3442 3,293
Non-compliance fine EREIRN - - - - 3,290 - - - 3,290
Write back of BERE
provision - - - (8,554) - - - — - (8,554)
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30 April 2003

4. Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments

Over 90% of the Group's revenue, results, assets and
liabilities are derived from customers based in the PRC and

accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s geographical

segments is presented.

5. Turnover, Other Revenue and Gains

The Group’s turnover represents proceeds from the provision of
services, sales of goods, tickets, food and beverages, and the
provision of port facilities and ticketing services less sales tax and
after trade discounts and returns, during the year. An analysis of the

Group's turnover, other revenue and gains is as follows:

—ETE=FWA=+H

4.

TEER ®
(b) RihE D E

AREFEBMIO% 2 WA ~ F4E -
BERBEDREFTEEP R
BANER Bt WEZ3E
BAREEMESIEZ DI -

R Hl AR WK

AEERFRNzEXBIRRAREMR
R - HEEMR  PIR - R RKRE
FRHEEORBERMEHERS - £
HERHEER LR ERERT N RRER
ZFTISHIH - ARASEEEZE R - A
A R Wz AT

2003 2002
—B2=F —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T
TURNOVER
Sales of goods and provision mn B AR AR 75
of services 208,637 255,559
OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS  H sl A K Wt 38
Interest income 655 662
Net realised gains/(losses) on ~ EERH EMKREHRE 2
trading of short term listed BEERWE/ (BE)FE
equity investments 9) 390
Dividend income from short REBLFTREREZ
term listed equity investments 13 158
Net rental income M WA FE 5,982 6,393
Exchange gain, net BN W F R 16 123
Sundry income 1,079 815
7,736 8,541
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
6.  Profit/(Loss) from Operating Activities 6. REXEBBF (FBE)

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

REBMEEEG 2R, (EBE) BN
B (GEA) Tol&E :

2003 2002
—ER=F —FE_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
lig=3 BETTT BT T
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAR 17,893 23,613
Cost of services provided* FIT Hi2 #5474 B 7K * 159,118 179,361
Depreciation nE 13 45,808 43,638
Amortisation of rights to use BEABORBZERN 14
port facilities 543 543
Provision for impairment of SRXReEMERRF 15
golf club memberships** 2,580 1,290
Provision for doubtful debts IR AE 828 1,496
Provision for amounts due JE MR BRE A T RSB AR
from related parties — 5,856
Minimum lease payments under i RIEF 2L &ML
operating leases in respect of &K & KA
land and buildings 10,905 10,429
Auditors’ remuneration ZER & 860 860
Staff costs (including directors’ BEXA (BEES
remuneration — note 8): Me— KEs) -
Wages and salaries Mk FHE 54,283 55,477
Pension scheme AR ARG B R
contributions 1,670 1,380
55,953 56,857
Loss on disposal of fixed assets & EE & EF1E 1,836 918
Net unrealised holding losses HHEREBEMERREHRE 2
on short term listed equity ENERTHE
investments 3,442 3,293
Write back of provision# Bprme — (8,554)
Non-compliance fine@ BHREINe 3,290 —

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @ HRHREBERBERLD
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
6.  Profit/(Loss) from Operating Activities (Continued) 6. REXBKEF(FHE) &
* Cost of services provided includes HK$91,377,000 (2002: e iR IR AR AN E A B I H BB 8K
HK$88,732,000) in respect of staff costs, depreciation of fixed assets, A BEEEENE BHELEORZRE
amortisation of rights to use port facilities and operating lease rentals MErimEEF 2 EEHOESHE
for land and buildings, which are also included in the respective total ¥91,377,000L (ZEE—F : B
amounts disclosed separately above for these types of expenses. 88,732,0007T) © & 5 BFHA Lt &
BRAXZHBEA -
** The provision for impairment of golf club memberships is included in s SBRAREEEBERBEFALES
“Other operating expenses” in the consolidated profit and loss account. HER[EMEERXIA -
# The balance represents the write back of a provision for staff benefits # 25 T Bk i X AR B R A R A B
due to the enactment of new PRC laws and regulations. RABImEE 2B BB -
@ The amount represents the payment of a non-compliance fine imposed @ ZEBREARBNE QR KENMNE
on Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Passenger Traffic Service Co., Ltd. (“Jiuzhou ERBAERAR (TAMNBFEAR])
Port Company”), a subsidiary of the Company, due to its failure to ERBEETHEBRRIEETERS (IS
comply with the regulations of the State Administration for Foreign EEER]) ZHRGMER ZERE
Exchange (“SAFE”) of the PRC. Pursuant to the regulations, the non- oo WRIBBRBEIE - BRI RLOB
compliance was subject to a fine of approximately HK$3,290,000 which #3,290,0007T - i ZBERIGIALE
was included in “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated profit BRERZ[EMEERMx] - s - K
and loss account. In addition to the above, Ferry Company, a jointly- EEZ HKRAEFHERERR AR INEE
controlled entity of the Group, was also subject to a non-compliance KB 3,748,0007T ° NEE DG E W
fine amounting to HK$3,748,000. The Group’s share of the fine imposed A B E R A B %1,836,0007T © E
on Ferry Company, of approximately HK$1,836,000, was reflected in RERAEREIBRR A Z [ D15 KRS
“Share of profit of a jointly-controlled entity” in the consolidated profit ERBARMN]  AKEEERS > EHN
and loss account. The directors of the Group are of the opinion that BRHSIRE  HEBEERB IS L
after the payment of the relevant fines, the SAFE will not take any MERRIE—TETOTE - B
further disciplinary action in respect of the aforesaid non-compliance. HBHERARRAR_FT_F+_A4
Further details concerning the above are set out in the Company’s press ToBBRLZFEBE -
announcement dated 11 December 2002.
7. Finance Costs 7. HMKEHR
Group
EN
2003 2002
—2E=F —TT_F
HK$000 HK$’000
YT BETT
Interests on bank loans wholly BRAFRNEBEHEEREZ
repayable within five years RITEFHF B 1,121 2,158
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8. Directors” Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of

the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

—ETE=FWA=+H

EEME

B IR B ER 16 R E B D THER
F161IEFTHETER B QA EE 2
SHBWOT ¢

Group
AEH
2003 2002
—BE=F —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT B FT
Executive directors: WITES
Fees e — —
Basic salaries EXH & 484 1,217
Pension scheme contributions  E KT 5 17 20
501 1,237
2003 2002
—EE=F —EE-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE T BT T
Non-executive directors: HEHRITES
Fees e 600 600

Fees include HK$400,000 (2002: HK$400,000) payable to the
independent non-executive directors. There were no other

emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors

during the year.

The remuneration of each director fell within the Nil to

HK$1,000,000 band.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation

for loss of office. There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @

& B IE S ¥ 400,000 (Z 2 E =
F : 7B %400,0007T) FE T B IEHR
TEFZNIE - FRWEENFEZ
EMITERTZHMBMS -

BEEFZ2HMEBHNTFEEREE
1,000,0007¢ °

AEEYN EAEEZNEMME - F
REBHEREMAREE ZME - HIE
RREFEZBBEE - FR > EEZHE
SEEA - WERF B REEMA
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8. Directors” Remuneration (Continued)

During the year, 31,120,000 share options were granted to the
directors in respect of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. No value
in respect of the share options granted during the year has been
charged to the profit and loss account, or is otherwise included in

the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

9.  Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2002:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining (2002: two)

non-director, highest paid employee are as follows:

—ETE=FWA=+H

8.

EEME 2

FEREH31,120,00010 B E T &KX
SERBCESE  FREHRUVBHBRE
MIzE33 - RERE L Z Bk EE S
mEt ABmE  HETA EXZEEB

SHBERNE -

LTERaFHES
FANEZESFHEERENEA (T
—FEZR)EBE EHBIHR EX
s - Ep—R(ZZTET_F ' W
) BREHIEEETREZHMESF BT
—F:

Group
AEH
2003 2002
—EE=F —EE-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT B FT
Basic salaries EX%F ¢ 1,008 1,202
Pension scheme contributions &Rt 242 12 12
1,020 1,214

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BN F TSRz &=HIFERE
B2 AT :

Number of employees

EEAE
2003 2002
—EE=F —ZTE-F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 T2 ¥1,000,0007C = 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7& ¥ 1,000,001 7T £ /& ¥ 1,500,0007C 1 1
1 2
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
9.  Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) 9. HEEBRSFHEER @
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the non-director, highest AEBYEAZEESHIIFEFESR
paid employee as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, XNME  ERBEFERSMALAEE
or as compensation for loss of office. B - S RBERLAEE -
During the year, 2,160,000 share options were granted to the non- FA BRmaFEEFEEHASE
director, highest paid employee in respect of his services to the E 2 AR 75 MR F 5 H 2,160,000 #8 AR
Group, further details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial o B EE R IEHRERMNE33
statements. No value in respect of the share options granted during We WHEABEEXRNBRFRNERLE
the year has been charged to the profit and loss account, or is BHEZ(EE  NEELLRESHIFE
otherwise included in the above non-director, highest paid EREBAMELHIEE -
employees’ disclosures.
10. Tax 10. BIE
Group
rEE
2003 2002
—ER=F —TE_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETTT BT T
Group: A&EH -
Hong Kong BB — _
PRC B 2,244 2,873
Share of tax attributable toa A ERFH ERHIE :
jointly-controlled entity:
PRC i 3,145 3,174
5,389 6,047

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided because the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2002: Nil).

Each of Zhuhai Holiday Resort Hotel Co., Ltd., Jiuzhou Port
Company and The New Yuanming Palace Tourist Co., Ltd. of Zhuhai
S.E.Z., which are subsidiaries of the Company, is subject to a PRC
income tax rate of 15% (2002: 15%). In addition, according to the
notices issued by the PRC tax authorities, /87K F iR %5 R A A,
a subsidiary of the Company, was subject to a reduced PRC income
tax rate of 7.5% from 1 January 2000 for a period of two years.
Thereafter, the PRC income tax rate of 15% is applicable.

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @

HRFRANKEBELAMRETELZ
FERBL M A - A Mt B FISBAE
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REEBRNAEBRAA - LMER
I X B R RO AR OF i [ (B AR 3 (B i i
BRARRARBMBAR - HER
15% 2 MEBAPREAEHR (T
F 2 15%) ° LEAN - IR BB RE
BT Z@A - ARFIME R RIRAENK
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10.

11.

12.

Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax has not been provided because there were no significant
timing differences at 30 April 2003 (2002: Nil).

The revaluation of the Group’s medium term leasehold land and
buildings outside Hong Kong does not constitute a timing difference
and, consequently, the amount of potential deferred tax thereon
has not been quantified.

Net Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary Activities Attributable
to Shareholders

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 April 2003 is HK$9,590,000 (2002: HK$8,771,000)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the Group’s net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for the
year of HK$6,405,000 (2002: net profit of HK$20,204,000) and the
weighted average of 799,000,000 (2002: 799,000,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

A diluted loss per share amount for the year has not been disclosed,
as the share options outstanding during the year had an anti-dilutive

effect on the basic loss per share for the year.

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 30 April
2002 has not been shown as the share options outstanding during
that year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
for that year.

—ETE=FWA=+H

10.

11.

12.

BE &

HR - ZEE=ZFNA=Z+BHIEFELX
RFZE - MW EREELEHRE (T
F o) o

EHAEEFTEAINNPHREE LR
BFIWEEKEE - Bt - B2
ERER IR RE D T HMR -

IRERFEML B EEBKLAR (&
BFEE)

BE_ZTT=FNA=1THILFER
AR A B B 755 2= Be 32 2 AR R fE 45 A
WX E R IFRE A 9,590,0007T
(ZZEZ =4 : #%8,771,0007T) °

BREF - (FHR)

FRERRBF TR FER R EMS B
B EEFREE 6,405,000t (=
T & FE%20,204,0000T) K
REEFBEETEZARMETHH
799,000,000f% (= & & — & :
799,000,0008%) 5t & -

AR ARITEBRESANFEGRER

BRERBEZE MABERESK
HEREIE -
HARARITEBRESSFEGRER

BEOBEREEZE EﬁZIﬂEIEIJﬁ
E_TTE_FOA=THILFEZS
B sE 2 A
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BY %5 ¥R Ak Y &
30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
13.  Fixed Assets 13. EEEE
Group rEE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Medium term equipment,
leasehold motor vehicles,
land and plant and
buildings machinery,
Construction outside and leasehold
in progress Hong Kong improvements Total
HKARE-
FRUSNZ HRE"E
THEE MERBER
rERIR TRkEF HEWERE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost or valuation: KAENE
At beginning of year F1 2,588 653,260 129,406 785,254
Additions NE 4,890 — 6,108 10,998
Disposals H & (1,436) — (1,568) (3,004)
Transfer from construction BERZIRE
in progress R (5,461) 699 4,762 —
Revaluation = — (17,979) — (17,979)
At 30 April 2003 R-ZTZ=F
mA=+H 581 635,980 138,708 775,269
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR ESR A ED
At cost A E 581 — 138,708 139,289
At 30 April 2003 valuation R-ZTT=F
MA=tREE — 635,980 — 635,980
581 635,980 138,708 775,269
Accumulated depreciation REHFERORME :
and impairment:
At beginning of year F 1) — — 55,389 55,389
Provided during the year AEEREE — 25,817 19,991 45,808
Disposals HE — — (1,133) (1,133)
Written back on revaluation £ [ — (25,817) — (25,817)
At 30 April 2003 RZZEZT=F
MA=+H — — 74,247 74,247
Net book value: IREFE :
At 30 April 2003 i
mA=+H 581 635,980 64,461 701,022
At 30 April 2002 R-ZTZ_F
mA=+H 2,588 653,260 74,017 729,865
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
13.  Fixed Assets (Continued) 13. EEEE ®)
Company KA
Motor
vehicles
and
leasehold
improvements
RER
HENEEE
HK$’000
BT
Cost: B ME :
At beginning of year and at 30 April 2003 FORR_ZE=FOA=1H 1,270
Accumulated depreciation and impairment: R T E RFE
At beginning of year 1 517
Provided during the year REFRE 254
At 30 April 2003 RZZEZE=FMA=1H 771
Net book value: IR ED% B
At 30 April 2003 RZZEZE=FMA=1H 499
At 30 April 2002 RZZEZE-_FMA=1H 753

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings of the Group

are pledged to various bankers to secure banking facilities granted

to the Group as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements.

WA TSR MRS 1P - AEE 2 &
THHASET W REBFEERTZH
RIT  ERAEEERE TRITRE
ZHER o
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30 April 2003

13.

Fixed Assets (Continued)

On 30 April 2003, the medium term leasehold land and buildings
outside Hong Kong were revalued by Castores Magi Surveyors
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
Depending on the nature of the properties, various leasehold land
and buildings of the Group were revalued at approximately
HK$614,500,000 (2002: HK$634,000,000), HK$18,300,000 (2002:
HK$15,800,000) and HK$3,180,000 (2002: HK$3,460,000) on the
depreciated replacement cost basis, the income capitalisation basis
and the open market basis, respectively. A net surplus of
HK$7,838,000 (2002: HK$9,199,000) resulting from the above
revaluations was recognised and recorded in the asset revaluation

reserve.

Had the Group’s medium term leasehold land and buildings outside
Hong Kong been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
they would have been included in the financial statements at a net
book value of approximately HK$538,485,000 (2002:
HK$564,169,000).

Save as disclosed above, all other fixed assets were carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 30 April 2003.

—ETE=FWA=+H

13.

EEEE #)

R-ZZEZT=FHMA="+H  FBUH
ZHHREEL M NEFERBLEE
& & 1% {4 (B Rl Castores Magi Surveyors
LimitedEfTE il - BIBEWHEEE W H
BIASFTEEERAVE - Wam & BME
RARMSBEEE  AEBESHELT
R FZ2EMBMEHREE
614,500,000 (Z T T —F : B
634,000,0007T) - /& #18,300,0007T
(ZZTZT =4 : 15,800,0007T) & & ¥
3,180,000t (=T = F : Bk
3,460,0007T) ° JRE FiE /K 2 FRA
45 7B ¥ 7,838,000 (Z T =4 -
7 #9,199,0007T) B R 5| R &
EEHEERN -

EAREBE 2 EFEBAINNFHABEE LR
BFIRKABERRFTITER - Al
ERV MR AR 2 IREFEELN RS
#538,485,0007C (—Z T —F : B
564,169,0007T) °

bR EXFTIEFTEE SN - FTE E & EYH
IR —_EE=FWMA=FTHZKAE
ERETITESIIR ©
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
14. Rights to Use Port Facilities 14. FEABORKZER
Group
r5HE
HK$’000
BEFT
Cost: PN
At beginning of year and at 30 April 2003 FORR_ZE=FENA=1H 21,577
Accumulated amortisation: REt#H
At beginning of year 1) 1,049
Charged for the year REREMER 543
At 30 April 2003 RZZEZE=FMA=1H 1,592
Net book value: IREDFE :
30 April 2003 RZZEZ=FMA=1H 19,985
30 April 2002 RZZEZE-_FMA=1H 20,528

15.

The balance represents the Group’s rights to use certain buildings

and structures erected on Jiuzhou Port in Zhuhai, the PRC, for a

term of 40 years up to 27 March 2040.

ERBEAERERE _THNEF=
A-+ttRALW+S8REEAES
WENLMNERBEZETEFTRER
ZHER e

Golf Club Memberships 15. SRS
Group
K %E
2003 2002
SIET I N
HK$7000 HK$'000
BEFT B FT
At cost DN 21,500 21,500
Provisions for impairment BB B (6,020) (3,440)
15,480 18,060
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30 April 2003

15.  Golf Club Memberships (Continued)

The balance represents memberships of a golf club in Zhuhai, the
PRC, held by the Group. The memberships are perpetual and are
freely transferrable. The memberships were acquired by the Group
to provide golf club facilities for the Group’s customers.

16. Goodwill

The amount of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
prior to the Group’s accounting period beginning 1 May 2001 which
remains eliminated against consolidated reserves as at 30 April
2003 was HK$192,973,000 (2002: HK$192,973,000).

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on adoption of
SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional provision of SSAP 30
that permitted goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred
prior to the Group’s accounting period beginning 1 May 2001, to

remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

17. Interests in Subsidiaries

—ETE=FWA=+H

15. EEXRESE @

TR E BN EIKERFE 2B
K EEE 2B KAH AT BH
EE AEEBASEZENERE
ERPRHESRREREMRME -

16. BHE

AEEBR_ZTT—FHA Btz
FEHIERT WM B AR MESEWE
R-_ZEZE=FMNA=+HZHEAHEE
W B e ER B
192,973,0007C (Z T =F : B
192,973,0007T) °

B RS IRRMI TSP - ERAEFE
BEAEI0MRER - AEEEMRSHE
TEAERIZE 305 Z BIERS - TIE - &
SEAKENR T —FA A — HiEsH
ZEstHEMKRBZEERNGE HE
A -

17. RBLAE Z2#ER

Company
¥ YN

2003 2002
—BE=F ZEE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMmARMHD (RRA) 892,808 892,808
Due from subsidiaries JE W Y 8 2 R R 3K 136,280 136,949
1,029,088 1,029,757

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

FE U BT 8 A Bl R SR ERER T B S 4K -
%8 R B EE R -
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30 April 2003

17.

Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are as

follows:

—ETE=FWA=+H

17. RMEBAT 2R (&)
KA EENRBARI ZFBAOT

Place Nominal value Percentage
of incorporation/ of issued and of equity
registration paid-up share/ attributable Principal
Company’s name and operations registered capital to the Company activities
MR ERTRAR NN
o i & Rz REE FE 16 IR A 1 52
DEEH TEm HMEAR BOk TEXH
Direct Indirect
BE ] &

Zhu Kuan Tourist British Virgin US$15,600 100 — Investment
Development Company Islands/ and property
Limited Hong Kong holding

REREERERAR RERZES/ 15,600% 7T 100 — REEERR

B0 MERE

Zhuhai Holiday Resort PRC HK$184,880,000 — 100 Management of
Hotel Co., Ltd. a holiday resort

KEEBRMEERRAR & 7& ¥ 184,880,0007T — 100 BB

The New Yuanming PRC RMB60,000,000 — 100 Management of
Palace Tourist Co., Ltd. a theme park
of Zhuhai S.E.Z.

KEEESEERNE P E AR #60,000,0007C — 100 ER—-TBLH
R R A A

KK EREFR A PRC RMB22,500,000 — 100 Management of

an amusement
park

WK EREER DA FE AR #22,500,0007C — 100 EE-EES

Jiuzhou Port Company PRC RMB42,330,000 — 90 Provision of

port facilities

and ticketing

services
hNEEERF E AR #42,330,0007T — 90 REEDRIER
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30 April 2003

17.

18.

Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at 30 April

2003 which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of all of the subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Interest in a Jointly-Controlled Entity

—ETE=FWA=+H

17. RBRARZER #)

ERINFARTR_ZZ=FMA=
TRZMBAR  EEFERSXEM

BARxE

oh B2 488
Ex®

FAZEBRBRAE

SEEEFECIEZND - EFER
REJNHZEHMBAT ZFIBEER
RIEBEMDILK -

18. RAEFEZEHER ZERS

Group

r5HE
2003 2002
—ZEE=F —TE_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETTT BT T

Share of net assets of an unlisted  ff 3E £ [ 5] B 8

jointly-controlled entity ZEERE 104,303 92,576

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity indirectly held by the

Company are as follows:

AR RIS 2 2R 2 6 R S

(N

Percentage of

Place of 6B 7t
Business registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal

Name structure and operations interest power sharing  activity

=1 XBER ARMRCEGR EERE# RERE BoBER IERER

Ferry Company Corporate PRC 49 49 49 Provision of
ferry
services

EN PN AL Gl 49 49 49  RERHRE
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18.

—ETE=FWA=+H

18. RHRBEFIEE o= (@)

Interest in a Jointly-Controlled Entity (Continued)

Extracts of the operating results and financial position of the jointly-
controlled entity are as follows:

HAEHEE &S EERMBORR
R

2003 2002
—EE=HF —ET-F
HK$7000 HK$’000
BETF T BT T
OPERATING RESULTS FOR BEZNA=1TRHLEE
THE YEAR ENDED ZIREEE
30 APRIL
Turnover BT 152,438 170,123
Operating profit before tax bR B¢ B 4% 2 B R 29,149 38,696
Tax I8 (6,419) (6,477)
Profit after tax Bk %1 18 22 7 22,730 32,219
FINANCIAL POSITION RUA=+HZHBERR
AS AT 30 APRIL
Non-current assets FRBEE 129,095 137,412
Current assets mMBEE 159,695 115,582
Total assets EERE 288,790 252,994
Current liabilities TBAE 75,928 64,065
Net assets BEFE 212,862 188,929

The operating results of the jointly-controlled entity for the year
ended 30 April 2003 include the non-compliance fine as set out in
note 6 to the financial statements. The Group’s share of the net
profit retained by the jointly-controlled entity after tax for the year
amounted to HK$6,277,000 (2002: HK$11,411,000).

The Group's share of net post-acquisition retained profits of the
jointly-controlled entity as at 30 April 2003 amounted to
HK$13,009,000 (2002: HK$6,732,000).

HEZEFEEEE _—_TT=FM A=
THIEFEZ&EEET RERD
Fo ABEENM B RERM T - NEE
B AR [ BR B0 12 Pk 2% [R) 458 1) 2 2%
REB R BB 6,277,000 (ZTZ
—4F : #E%11,411,0007T) °

REBR-_ZZT=FWMA=1+HFML
HEZEGIE R 2 WERARB AN RE
#13,009,000c (=TT —4F : B
6,732,0007C) °
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19. Interests in Jointly-Controlled Operation 19. RERBESFEHK 2=
The Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement in the form REBEMB (FH) BRQFIAHXR
of a jointly-controlled operation with Waltin (HK) Limited to operate EHRBART LB - ARKEE
the Chinese Medicine Valley in Zhuhai, the PRC. The Group has a REIKETARZER - REERZ
30% participating interest in this joint venture. At 30 April 2003, EEDCEMBI0% L EERE - K=
the aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities, income and profits or TE=FMA=+H  BEAEENZ
losses recognised in these financial statements in respect of the HEES R 230%2 ARERERR
Group’s 30% participation in this jointly-controlled operation were MBHmERz2EE B Wam kAN
as follows: KE BT
Group
rEE
2003 2002
—ER=F —FE_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETTT BT T
Assets BE 2,874 —
Liabilities &% 567 —
Income I 25 1,527 =
Losses BB 515 —
20. Interests in Associates 200 REERT 2R
Group
r5HE
2003 2002
—22=F —EECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
Share of net assets of unlisted 13 FTEE AR Z BEFE
associates 2,157 586

The Group’s share of the net loss retained by the associates for the
year amounted to HK$429,000 (2002: HK$64,000).

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition accumulated deficit of
the associates as at 30 April 2003 amounted to HK$1,343,000 (2002:
HK$914,000).

AREBERANFEMGEE AR Z2RE
B R F R B 429,000 (ZEE —
£ E ¥ 64,0007T) ©

AEBR-_ZT=FMA=1+HFMIL
B a2 WEE R EAREBE
1,343,000c (Z T ZF : ¥
914,0007T) °
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20. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

—ETE=FWA=+H

20.

Place of
incorporation

REE NT 2R (#)

AN E 2 ST

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

Name Business structure and operations to the Group  Principal activity
AKH
ot B 3 L IEES §-
% ES 3o KemE Bk ETEER
Allways Internet Limited* Corporate Hong Kong 50  Investment holding
REBEEERDA A EE 50 REER
REMKAEGERGRRARRDA*  Corporate PRC 38  Software development
KEMAASEHMHRRBERLRA 27 Bl 38 RBEM
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young Global o JF JEF Ernst & Yong Hong Kong sk &
member firms. fErnst & Young Global B B 2 &) %
% o
21.  Investments 21. RE
Group Company
ZN L AT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—2%=F —TTCF —2T=F ZTT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BETT BEFT BT
Long term investment: REBKRE :
Non-trading unlisted equity FEEFLD
investment, at cost BREHE
BAAE 584 584 — —
Short term investments: HHRE :
Hong Kong listed equity BELETRE
investments, at market value 1&%#& @ RWE 2,420 5,883 2,420 5,883
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21. Investments (Continued) 21. RE #®)
The market value of the Group’s short term investments at the date RBBHERBFRRERD  AEBHE
of approval of these financial statements was approximately R ERMEX R E¥4,786,0007T
HK$4,786,000 (2002: HK$3,762,000). (ZZZ =4 : #%3,762,0007T) °
22.  Prepayments and Deposits 22. ERNRERRZERS
Group
r5HE
2003 2002
—2E=fF —EFT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
Rental prepayments ENHEE 5,338 5,593
Deposits for acquisition WBEETEERS
of fixed assets 89 1,069
5,427 6,662
23. Dividend Receivable from and Balance with a Jointly- 23. BEWHRERZEH EEKR S K HE

controlled Entity and Balance with a Joint Venture

Partner

The dividend receivable from a jointly-controlled entity was settled

during the year.

The balances with a jointly-controlled entity and a joint venture
partner are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

HEZEHEBRSERBHZ
A ER R IR

JEM AR ZEH EBBRENAFRALR

8% -

HARZEHEE R EBHEZEHR
BT EEER - 28 R EREEER
5
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24. Inventories 24. FE
Group
REH
2003 2002
—E2E=F —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE T BT T
Food, beverages and souvenirs #iHE 2 ®Y) - KM R 2 m
held for resale purposes 2,385 2,559
None of the inventories were carried at net realisable value as at MEAMTENEE H 2 7 FE
the balance sheet date (2002: Nil). IR (ZZEE_F : &) o
25. Trade Receivables 25. EWE SR

A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group. The general
credit terms range from 1 month to 3 months, except for certain
well-established customers with a good repayment history, where
the terms are extended to 18 months. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances

are regularly reviewed by senior management.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet

date, net of provisions, is as follows:

REBEBAREEERE - BrE TH
ERIFERLHEZEPEETE T/\(E
RzEREEHN  —REEHE—
E=EA  -BUEFEFHUBEESEE
B oo AEBBROEMEFBRBIESIER 2
FEURR - URIREERR - S&E
A E B 5T B B A B e

REEE A 2 FEE 2 IR FOR B 2 i1k
BofmT

Group

N |
2003 2002
—BER=F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T EET T
Current — 3 months BNER = 318 A 7,397 7,775
4 — 6 months 4Z6f8 A 4,403 4,106
7 — 12 months 721218 A 3,909 4,401
13 — 18 months 1321818 A 4,955 3,028
20,664 19,310
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25.

26.

Trade Receivables (Continued)

As at 30 April 2003, the Group had a receivable from the Zhuhai
Municipal Government arising from the use of the Group’s hotel
facilities amounting to approximately HK$11,059,000 (2002:
HK$11,335,000). Such balance was included in trade receivables
under current assets. The trade receivable with the Zhuhai Municipal
Government was unsecured, interest-free and the credit term granted

was as mentioned above.

Due from a Minority Shareholder of a Subsidiary

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and will be settled by the
minority shareholder’s entitlement to future dividends from Ferry
Company as detailed in note 40 to the financial statements.

—ETE=FWA=+H

258

26.

EWE SRR @)

R-ZTEZE=FHNA=+H A&EEHA
TR T BUAT (58 AR AN &R B 2 OB JE 5% b T
5|8 2 #975% 11,059,000 (ZTEZ =
& : #%11,335,0007T) 2 FEURGKIA -
ZEERRERINE SRR A RE) & EIE
THIER - ZRETEBA 2 EKE SRR
TEERH 2B REEXFAiZEE

B3R -

FE W B A B D R R R

IR GR R AR - e 8 K DA BA 5 3R
& M RE40 Pt A BB R W ER 2 8 A 7
A& ZBREfT -
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27. Due from Related Parties

Particulars of the amounts due from related parties disclosed pursuant
to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as

—ETE=FWA=+H

27. EWEEALTIR

RIBEEBERFEHIE161BIFIHE 2 &
WRAE AN RARFBHOT -

follows:
Group TEHE
Maximum
amount
outstanding
Name Relationship 30 April 2003  during the year 1 May 2002
ERE K
—22=F BEREZ —Re-F
1= & mA=+A BB HA-A
HK$7000 HK$7000 HK$'000
EEFT BT BEFT
Macau-Mondial Travel & Tours Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
(“Macau-Mondial”) of the Company
RPIIRBRIREB R A A ARARZFRAFEME AT
([BPIERBR]) 5,398 5,398 5,398
Zhuhai Special Economic Fellow subsidiary
Zone Hotel of the Company
(“Zhuhai SEZ Hotel”)
RERENBEE ANAE 2 R ZHE A R
(TR R R AEE]) 458 458 458
Zhuhai Holiday Resort Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary
(“Resort Company”) of the Company
REEBRNERRAR ANRAE 2 R ZHE A F
(IERAEEN AR — 8,000 8,000
5,856 13,856
Provisions B (5,856) (5,856)
— 8,000
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—ZZ=FEMA=+H
27.  Due from Related Parties (Continued) 27. BEWEBEEALRN @

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured and interest- JEUW R B N RRTIEEIER KR
free. The amount due from Resort Company was repaid during the B BUEKEBERN QAR ZRRE R

year. RERNES o
The amounts due from Macau-Mondial and Zhuhai SEZ Hotel as at RIZBEZE=FHA=+H - EYREPM
30 April 2003 represent the outstanding balance arising from the RERIREREANBERRIERB
sale of tickets in previous years. Full provision in respect of the EFERABHBEEMRZREERSE -
amounts was made during the year ended 30 April 2002. ZEFRBAER _ZEZE_FHA=+H

IEFEEHREEME -
28. Cash and Cash Equivalents 28 RERBAESEEY
Group Company
rEE ERF
2003 2002 2003 2002
—22=F —ET-F —B2=F —EECF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE T BT T BEFT BT
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHEH 97,631 69,221 4,054 12,718
Time deposits with original EHEFER - RE
maturity: FH

Less than three months LR=1EA 14,110 41,994 14,110 9,725
More than three months B =1EA 9,739 9,533 — —
121,480 120,748 18,164 22,443

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$72,394,000
(2002: HK$49,833,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

REER  AXEBEUARB(TAR
B EEZREe RRTEBKBBE
72,394,000m (= T T =
49,833,000 7T) - ARBTSERK
WMAGHMENR - Am - BEBEFEZH
FEE RO R EE - HEREEESE
BE - NEEEESBEREETI
EXBCRITBARBLABSEME
WL o
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29. Trade Payables 29. BNHEZIKRXK
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date REEHZENE SRR ZIRE DT
is as follows: mE
Group
r5HE
2003 2002
=f ———
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
Current — 3 months BNER = 318 A 5,783 6,515
4 — 6 months 4Z6fd A 1,101 3,129
7 — 12 months 7E121E A 673 761
13 — 18 months 13E 1818 A 2,387 1,264
9,944 11,669
30. Construction Payables 30. BN IRENIE
Construction payables, which represent amounts due to construction FEN TRRIBEREN T IREABRHZ
contractors, are unsecured and repayable in accordance with the IR B AR S TRRE D2 ERE
terms of the respective construction contracts. The outstanding BZHIA - RMEERERBREA R R
balance is interest-free. 2o
31. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings, Secured 31. T ERITERK (FEH)
Group
rEE
2003 2002
=F —TT_F
HK$000 HK$’000
BETFT BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AR —FRERE 25 BRTER
repayable within one year 11,215 28,972
The interest-bearing bank borrowings are secured by pledges over FFRRITERIIAREEE T A
certain medium term leasehold land and buildings of the Group &+ M AR T R IR (B 7 ]k Y e

(note 13 to the financial statements). 13) °

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @ KAEXBREBER-LA



Notes to Financial Statements

BF A% 3R R M A

30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
32.  Share Capital 32. BRA
2003 2002
—BER=F —ETT-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,000/% & iR E &
HK$0.10 each #0107 2 iR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
799,000,000 shares of 799,000,000% & fi% E &
HK$0.10 each B#0.107T 2 1D 79,900 79,900
Share options B B R
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share options AT 2 AR R 5T B A S AR IR 5T 81 2%
issued under the schemes are included in note 33 to the financial 1T 2 FE PR M 2 5% 175 30 00 B 765 3 3% B &
statements. 33 ©
33. Share Option Schemes 33. BRESTE

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2 and
under the heading “Employee benefits” in note 3 to the financial
statements. As a result, the following detailed disclosures relating
to the Company’s share option schemes are now included in the
notes to the financial statements. In the prior year, these disclosures
were included in the Report of the Directors, as their disclosure is

also a requirement of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s share option scheme which was adopted on 26
May 1998 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated and replaced by a
new share option scheme approved by the shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 26 September 2002 (the
“New Scheme”). Upon the termination of the Old Scheme, no further

share options may be granted thereunder.

W EE2 K M RE3 TR B A& A P At -
RABRFARP ST EBERFE34
15 > Btk - WA AT BRI FEA
REET B 2 WEERF B A B MR M T
WeEZF ZEBRBEERTDKRLETR
AIZREHNEFTSTREENRN -

RABR—HNNANFEA -+ /REK
Mz ERERE (B8] KER
I YHARABERR-_ZFZ_FAN
A +RBRITZERRERNAS L1
A F BB RE &) ([HrEH 811 B -
mIPERTER - NS RBEHEI BT
B RE o
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33.

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

A summary of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme is set out
below:

(a) Old Scheme

The Company operated the Old Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributed to the success of the Group'’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Old Scheme included the Company’s
directors, including executive and non-executive directors,
and other employees of the Group. The directors of the
Company were able to, at their absolute discretion, invite
any employees of the Group or any of its subsidiaries,
including any director of the Company or any such
subsidiary, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The Old Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 26 May 1998 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, would have remained in force for 10 years from
its date of adoption. No share options were granted under
the Old Scheme during the year. Out of the total 25,000,000
share options outstanding as at 1 May 2002, 17,900,000
and 7,100,000 share options were cancelled and lapsed
upon the termination of the Old Scheme and the retirement
of directors, respectively. Consequently, there were no share
options granted under the Old Scheme which remained
outstanding as at 30 April 2003.

—ETE=FWA=+H

33.

R REST B ()
Ei B RFABIHEENT -

(a)

EB&ta

BARHRBENE H BERE
T2 B 5 49 7 £ B & B AR D) /B I
BRlzEER2HEE - & JrilJ
ZEBRB2HEEBEARR
=8 %Eﬁigiﬂﬁ&#ﬁﬁ
BEERHEMEE) - ARFE
%TEEE’JIE;L.@KEI—JZH
FERAKBARIZIEE (2R
REEEMZEMNB AR Z
EMES) EAQRREARARQ A
& fn 2 BB RRHE - R AR —N
ANFERAZ+NBEMNE
2l - BRIEAHE A 5 X EUE &
] BRIEFTEIERM A it
BERHARTF - REAMER
BETERDEMBRE - B
T _FHRHA—HBAE&H
25,000,000 1# K17 2 i AR
¥R - 17,900,00010 &
7,100,00017 f& A% 1 5 RI A& 1
EffEIRESERFETHER
Ko At - MEARBEE
FrEIFTEECERER T
=FMA=+BNRETE-
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33.

BF A% 3R R M A

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme

The Company adopted the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”). Eligible participants of the New Scheme include
the directors and employees of the Company, its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers, of the Group
or any Invested Entity, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity, and any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity. The New Scheme became effective on 26
September 2002 and,

amended, will remain in force for 10 years.

unless otherwise terminated or

—ETE=FWA=+H

33.

BRESTE @
(b) &t &

ARFRMFEE - G
REHAEIKEREYRER
P 2 BB, S A
ENBRRRRESERES -
B F R 3 49 75 o [ % 4F {7 7 46
E AR AN B (R
ER) IEASEAZ AL - it
B EBBHERERA
7 EMEARREARERE
%2§$&ﬁﬁ~x%§qg
ARAEE HEERES -
) 7 S I o A 4 B 5 B
9% - BREE L E b BT IR 2 T
AT R T - A E AR
ERRRAARE TR AR
BB o 4% 7 A AR AR LA B
1o 40 B R B AT 2 AT
B H 2 EMBEA - 58
R-BT-FNLA-FTABE
R B E AT R ECH S
1E5T - mRIFE B2 AR A
+
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33.

BY %5 3R A% MY RE

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company may not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company may not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the date of the annual general meeting held on 26
September 2002.

Each grant of the share options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, under the New Scheme must comply with
the requirements of Rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules and
must be subject to approval by the independent non-
executive directors to whom share options have not been
granted. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options already granted and to be
granted (including share options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are

subject to prior shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

—ETE=FWA=+H

33.

BRESS

(b)

Het@ (F

AR BT 5T B R AN 2 BEA E At
EREAIEEEERARITE
B EBATERR T
TR RSEE - aRTE
BBARE TR B ETRMD AR
B Z210% ° BB E AR
AR E AL BB AR BIR 2
B MITERR T #1T
2RI EE - AR TEBBRN
—EE_FNANRA-FRBETT
ZBREIBFEREERAD HITH
AR Z10% °

BEABBFTERALRE
FTHRBHNEZRRHE
EEEHBEATIRETER
o M ZEES EWEAE
17.0416 2 #8281 - W/RRERURE
BTEREZBIENTES
ZHEAE o UESN - fEmIARA R E
ZRFHIB I IENITE SN
fARESBZHEATRLEE
BRI - HEMEEZR T
BEIE+—1@ A HM (B #E%
HEBH AEH8TEELER
HELBRE(2EB T
£ - BEaEdE R RITEEZ B
) METRETETZRG
BBA DA B BETRD

0.1% - ML FXEHBHAARA
&z W EE  AEBR
7% 5,000,000 + RIIZEE L4
[ WA 4 N 1 i
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33.

BF A% 3R R M A

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, save that such period may not be more
than ten years from the date of the offer of the share options,
subject to the provisions for early termination set out in the
New Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before the exercise of the subscription
right attaching thereto, except as otherwise imposed by the
board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the
share options; (ii) the average SEHK closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

—ETE=FWA=+H

33.

BRESS

(b)

Het@ (F

RBERH CERENNIZES

BRE28H AR - AR AER
EMERERANEREAEE
1.007C Z RBUERE - FIERHE
BRI 2T AR R ESE
E B BABETEEARE
FEtBlpT iR R R IE IR XIR 2
AR HEZ BT+ F - BRIEE
BEEHRT  SRIRITER
AR FEFTOT SRRERERT - HABRE
R ZEFAERAE -

BREITEERESEE
THRERMGEZREBRES
BARRARRNEEEHERS
FrBERA A ([EEEZA]) 2
WmE : (i) mXAFKRORE
EREAHNAEXSAESR
EEE X P 2 F¥a U B sk (i)
RARKRGODEE (xS E R
%) o

B R A 3 4 B T 4 AR R
BRRABEAE LRE#
i -
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30 April 2003

33.

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme (Continued)

The following share options were granted and remained

—ETE=FWA=+H

33. BREE =&
(b) FEE (&

FAREH A BB R L R AD

outstanding under the New Scheme during the year: RITEZBRENT
Granted Price of
Name or during the Exercise price Company’s
category of year and at Date of grant of Exercise period of share  shares at grant
participant 30 April 2003 share options*  of share options options**  date of options***
REARR
—E¥=F ERARGE
SRENA mA=t+AH R BRE REERE
& A Bt BREAS BRETESE TRE" Btz B
HK$ HK$
BT BRI
Directors
Bz
Mr. Ouyang Guoliang 3,180,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
BREERLE “ET=E “EE-FMAATERE
mA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
Mr. He Weilong 3,180,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
fIEERE “FF=F “ET-FOAtLRE
MmA+tA “E-Z¥NATRA
Mr. Yu Huaguo 2,860,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
REALL “ET=F “EE-FMAATERE
MA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
Mr. Liang Xuebing 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
REERE “ET=F “ER-FNATERE
MmA+tA “E-Z¥NATRA
Mr. Liang Caijia 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RTERE “ET=E “EE-FMAATERE
MA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
Mr. Chen Yonglin 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RAMEL “TR= “ET-FQOAtLRE
MmA+tA “E-Z¥NATRA
Mr. Wu Hanqui 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RERKHE “ET=F “EE-FMAATERE
MA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
Mr. Chen Yuanhe 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
- ymilbits “FF=F “ET-FQOAtLRE
MmA+tA “E-Z¥NATRA
Mr. Yu Jinyao 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RBEEEL “ET=E “EE-FMAATERE
MA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
Mr. Jin Tao 2,700,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
TREE “ZT=f “ZTR-FMATLHE
MmA+tA “E-Z¥NATRA
Mr. Liang Han 1,000,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RESE “ET=E “EE-FMAATERE
MA++H “Z-ZfMATRA
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33.

BF A% 3R R M A

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme (Continued)

—ETE=FWA=+H

33.

BRESS

(b)  HETE (F

Granted Price of
Name or during the Exercise price Company’s
category of year and at Date of grant of Exercise period of share  shares at grant
participant 30 April 2003 share options*  of share options options**  date of options***
RERKR
=2 FRARNBE
SRENS mA=t+AH R BRE R
% E A BE  BRERM BRETEER TRE Bz B
HK$ HK$
BET EET
Directors
=
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung 1,000,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
AR EE “ER=F “ZT-EMATLAE
MA++H “2-=fMATRA
Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David 1,000,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RpBEE “ER=F “ZT-EMATLAE
MA++H “2-=fMATRA
31,120,000
Other employees
HittfE g 20,210,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
—TE=F “ET=ENAT+HEE
MA++A “2-=EMATRA
Others
Hit 28,570,000 17 April 2003 17 April 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
—TE=F “ET=ENAT+HEE
MA++A “2-=EMATRA
79,900,000
e The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the z Rz fFRBERHZE
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. EEITEAMMBE L -
e The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment o A A 2 7T (2B AJ AR SR A AR

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes

in the Company’s share capital.

RS The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of D08

the grant of the share options is the SEHK’s closing price on

the trading day of the grant of the share options.
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BY %5 3R A% MY RE

33.  Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(b)

New Scheme (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 79,900,000
share options outstanding under the New Scheme. The
exercise in full of these share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 79,900,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$7,990,000 and share
premium of HK$11,985,000 (before issue expenses).

34. Reserves

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 34
and 35 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired, together with the surplus arising on
the acquisition of the site of the Group’s theme park,
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 30 April 1998, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued under

this Group reorganisation.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entity and associate
established in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their profits after tax to the statutory reserve
funds. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and these subsidiaries’, jointly-controlled
entity’s and associate’s articles of association, the statutory
reserve funds may be used either to offset losses, or for

capitalisation issues by way of paid-up capital.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves, as explained in note 16 to the

financial statements.

—ETE=FWA=+H

33. BREE =&

(b)

34. %

(a)

Het@ (F

Y = PN N )
79,900,00017 18 1% ¥ 5+ 2l 14 <
TR BARHE - RIBAR QAR
TR 28T EZSE
Gl R QNN I
79,900,000/% ¥ 5 % 38 AR 2 B
4 ¥ 7,990,0007T 2 FBHNIE AN
K & #11,985,0007T 2 A% 15 4
B CRETETER) °

rEE

7K S5 [ 3O AN 4 AR A F
HESHERFEEH 25N
BREEMEEEISERME
HEEBHER o

AN E 2 B & eRTs P UE BT
B2 BBty Z HEE RARE A
EER—NANANEFEEA=+H
ZEESEHANEERTEAE
ZEHPRELE 2 BERERIRE
HEAARFEBEITROEBEE
MERZZR o

RIFPBEERERM - £ K
YZ2WMBAT - KRESER
& A NCIRS PR SRS SRt
MzBETHEILLLBAOEE HE
B A o ARIR T B A BRG] K
B AE - FK[E G E S N
REAZHEBERARAE ZE
TR - OEERES A AAE
B IE S A SR KT X EE
AL BT -

INBT IS MR EE16HTI - BAAE
6 U B I 2 ) B R 7
TEFTSERERA FEEBNES
g -
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
34. Reserves (Continued) 34. & #®
(b) Company (b) ARF
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
IR 43 5 B BRER REBR B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 May 2001 RZ-TEZT—F
AA—BZ&#H 359,599 628,440 (1,419) 986,620
Net loss for the year RNEEEBRFHE — — (8,771) (8,771)
At 30 April 2002 and RZZTZT=F
at 1 May 2002 MA=+H
E—FT_F
TA—HAH 359,599 628,440 (10,190) 977,849
Net loss for the year RNEEEBRFHE — — (9,590) (9,590)
At 30 April 2003 RZEET=
mMA=+H 359,599 628,440 (19,780) 968,259

RRBZE BB ERIERIEMT 5T
34(a) B it 2 E5 48 51 &) P W BB B
BARRERZAMHEEFRE
BHARARAIERBMEITZ
By zEEMERZZR - R
BEARE NN\ —FRFE
(FIER]) ZHE » ARFIZE
BMBBRANELEFRT DK T
BRR -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the then combined net asset values of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation scheme referred to
in note 34 (a), over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
of the Company is distributable to shareholders in certain

circumstances.
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35.

36.

37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Prior year comparative amounts

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current year, as detailed
in note 2 to the financial statements, which has resulted in a change
to the layout of the consolidated cash flow statement. The
consolidated cash flow statement is now presented under three
headings: cash flows from operating activities, investing activities
and financing activities. Previously five headings were used,
comprising the three headings listed above, together with cash flows
from returns on investments and servicing of finance and from taxes
paid. The significant reclassifications resulting from the change in
presentation are that interest and dividends received and taxes paid
are now included in cash flows from operating activities. The
presentation of the 2002 comparative consolidated cash flow

statement has been changed to accord with the new layout.

Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the Company had
any significant contingent liabilities (2002: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s bank loans secured by assets of the Group

are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

Operating Lease Arrangements
(@) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its leasehold land and buildings
(note 13 to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
1 to 25 years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

—ETE=FWA=+H

35.

36.

37.

38.

mERERBRHE
EEELBRBE

B FE IR MT 2P FE A - AR AR A
FERMEFTEBERE150E (K&
i) BEEERERERZHEEEAM
2y - GaReREaXRRER=EE
B27 : BREXBHRERE  KE
EEMBERE  BERBZAEES
HEFLM=I8  FERKEDR - &
BEXRARENRBAZRERE - 27
TRZEBEHAEAZTEBHOH
Th 1% B WA B R B B A R B B A 5
AREXBFHASRE - BTEERH
ZHREE - Rt R Z — B2 —FHH
RERERZZI T AXBELES -

HAREE

REFER - AR F AL B8 EMA
EARRBBEB(ZTT_F - £&) -

BEEZER

NAEEEEFEERBMBG ZAEE
RITERFBHN B HRERMES -

memRoRH
@ fERHBEA

AREBETDGRBEZLEHEOZHEHE
EHPETLHRIEFT (MK
WEMEEI3) F EREZHEE
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38. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued)

()

(b)

—ETE=FWA=+H

38. RKEMNYOZTH @)

As lessor (Continued) @ fERHEBEAGE
At 30 April 2003, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZFEET=FEMA=+H " &K
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its EEBRBEREAZEIT 2 A
tenants falling due as follows: BEHEE BV BAEK 2 &
RRBESHFEMAT
Group
r5HE
2003 2002
—B2=F —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETTT BT T
Within one year —FR 8,096 6,185
In the second to B_FEEERF
fifth years, inclusive (PREEEMSE) 14,957 14,272
After five years HF% 1,017 6,410
24,070 26,867
As lessee (b) EHREHEA

The Group leases certain of its office property, hotel
properties and facilities under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
1 to 44 years.

AREBERLOMRYE - BEY
ERRMIDRBEEEEHLH
HE  -ZEWEHOzEER
EHBRN F1FEE445F o
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30 April 2003 —ZZ=FEMA=+H
38. Operating Lease Arrangements (Continued) 38. KEMENLTH @)
(b)  As lessee (Continued) by EREBEANGE
At 30 April 2003, the Group and the Company had future RZZEE=FWA=+AH" K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating S E LA RBIRE DA HEE 2
leases falling due as follows: REBDR BN 2 & DR
HERBEWOT :
Group Company
rRE PN
2003 2002 2003 2002
—22=F —ETCF —22=F —ETC-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T BEFT BT
Within one year —FR 11,354 10,490 = 504
In the second to B_FEEERF
fifth year, inclusive (BEEEMSE) 40,938 38,653 = —
After five years hFER 303,653 312,635 = —
355,945 361,778 — 504
39. Commitments 39. &I

In addition to the operating leases commitments detailed in note

38 above, the Group had the following commitments at the balance

Br b SCH sE 38Rl 2 48 & 1 8 A 42
Sh REBNREER ZAEMT:

sheet date:
Group
EN
2003 2002
—®E=F ZTTH
HK$000 HK$’000
BE TR BETT
Capital commitments BARAEERTA
contracted for:
Acquisition of fixed assets WEEEE & E 2,894 487
Capital injection into mEERAEAER
an associate — 2,000
2,894 2,487

The Company had no commitments at the balance sheet date (2002:
Nil).

REEE

—F

AARQRWEEAERE(CET
;) o
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30 April 2003

40.

Connected and Related Party Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with related

parties, which also constituted connected transactions as defined

under the Listing Rules, during the year:

—ETE=FWA=+H

40. BEXZRBEALIXRS

PREF ISR EMEOPAIRESEI - F
AAREEE NI ERBEALRS
MBK ETRAMEZE ZHBERS:

Name Notes Nature 2003 2002
AEEM Kt et (i3 =t 3 3.5 S
HK$’000 HK$000
BE TR BETT
Resort Company (i) Rental expenses 8,500 8,500
KERRBN AR (i) HEHX
Zhu Kuan (HK) (i) Rental expenses 504 504
ok () (i) HERX
Ferry Company (ii) Agency cum 18,644 20,775
management fee
8N (i) RERERE
Minority shareholder (the (iif) Rental expenses 1,576 995
“Minority Shareholder”) of
Jiuzhou Port Company
NME DRz DERBER ([DEBR]) (iii) HEHX
Zhuhai Gree Group Corp. Finance Co., Ltd. (iv) Interest income — 64
(formerly known as “Zhu Kuan Enterprise
(Group) Finance Company Limited
of Zhuhai”)
Zhuhai Gree Group Corp. Finance Co., Ltd. (iv) FEMA

(AR [RBRECERBHMBEARLIA])
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40.

BF A% 3R R M A

Connected and Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The rental expenses paid to Resort Company and Zhu Kuan (HK), fellow
subsidiaries of the Company, were calculated by reference to the
respective tenancy agreements. In addition to the rental expenses of
HK$8,500,000 (2002: HK$8,500,000) incurred during the year, the
Group has made a rental prepayment of HK$4,000,000 (2002:
HK$4,250,000) which was included as a current asset as at 30 April
2003.

Jiuzhou Port Company, a subsidiary, received agency commission fees
and service fees (“Agency cum management fee”) for the provision of
agency services for the selling of ferry tickets to passengers and
management services of the berthing facilities of Zhuhai’s Jiuzhou Port
to the Ferry Company, a jointly-controlled entity. The Agency cum
management fee is charged at a rate of 23.5% on the gross proceeds
from the sale of ferry tickets.

Jiuzhou Port Company has entered into certain lease agreements with
the Minority Shareholder in the current and prior years as follows:

(a) In 1994, Jiuzhou Port Company was granted by the Minority
Shareholder, who is also the major shareholder of the Ferry
Company, the rights to use the Jiuzhou Port facilities for a
period of 20 years for a lump sum payment of approximately
RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000,000).
Under a supplemental lease agreement dated 1 March 2000,
the terms of the lease were re-negotiated and both parties
agreed to extend the lease to Jiuzhou Port Company for the
use of port facilities, which include certain buildings and
structures erected at the Jiuzhou Port, to 40 years from that
date, up to 27 March 2040, at no additional cost (note 14 to
the financial statements);

(b) Under a lease agreement dated 28 March 2000, the Minority
Shareholder agreed to lease to Jiuzhou Port Company the land
use rights in respect of the land surrounding the Jiuzhou Port
at an annual rental of RMB515,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$481,000) for a period of 40 years;

—EE=
=%

==

40.

FMA=+H

BEXZRBEALIXRS @®

=2

(i)

(iii)

B AR FR KK B D RBREE R
NRAR R (BE) 2HEMX T2
EHEAZHERHEAHE -BRENZ
& MXA%8,500,000T (=TT =
F : 7% %8,500,0007T) I © ANEEE
T8 1+ # € B # 4,000,000 (=TT =
F : % %4,250,0007T) F WER =T
T=FNA=THFARDEER °

HEBARNMNERAR REFRELE
TR 2 IR IR K Al R % 6 E
BEHQARRANBEAREZE
38 AR A5 Btk WER AR IR A & B A R AR
HEA(REREREE]) - RERE
BERTETGMERARTEZ
23.5%UER ©

HMNERR R DB RN AFE B
EFEMILZ2ETHEBHENT :

(@) —hAhmE - DR (A
FEHARAZEEZERR) XTI

MR RERAMNE LD R
ZHERN - RE=—t+F  RE
BRREXZFARBLD
33,000,0007T (18 & 74 5 49
31,000,0007T) ° RIF-T=
TFE=A—Biuz@HxH
% ZERHIERE TEIF D
- BEEFREBTERAME
ARERB O RE (BEEN
MNBEEZ B TREFREB)
ZHE - BZARE_ZN
THE=A=++HAH40
F - MBAXZEIINER (B
MM EE14)

(b) BER-_TTETF=A=-1
NBRIZzHEWH#E P&
& 3R R B A5 UM 7 B B 4 it
2 AERE T AME
AR RN+ E - SFH
& A/ ARM515,0007T (HHE
RAB M 4481,0007T)
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40. Connected and Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

(Continued)

(Continued)

(c)

Under a lease agreement dated 22 May 2001, the Minority
Shareholder agreed to lease to Jiuzhou Port Company the plaza
surrounding the Jiuzhou Port at an annual rental of RMB600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$561,000) for a period of five
years starting from 1 June 2001. The rental expense was
calculated by reference to the respective tenancy agreement;

Under a lease agreement dated 8 January 2003, the Minority
Shareholder agreed to lease to Jiuzhou Port Company the office
premises at an annual rental of approximately RMB755,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$706,000) for a period of one
year starting from 1 January 2003. The rental was calculated
by reference to the respective tenancy agreement; and

Under a lease agreement dated 9 January 2003, the Minority
Shareholder agreed to lease to Jiuzhou Port Company other
port facilities at Jiuzhou Port adjacent to that referred to in
note 40 (iii) (a) at an annual rental of RMB960,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$897,000) for a period of five years starting
from 1 January 2003. The rental was calculated by reference
to the respective tenancy agreement.

As at T May 2001, Jiuzhou Port Company had an outstanding balance

amounting to HK$1,213,000 with Zhuhai Gree Group Corp. Finance

Co., Ltd, previously a fellow subsidiary of the Company. The balance

bore interest at a rate of 3% per annum and was fully repaid as at 30

April 2002.

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited @ KAEXBREBER-LA
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40. BEXSIERBEALIRS @

B &t -

(iii)

(iv)

(&)

(&

BRER-_FTT—FARA-T
— R zHERHE  PH
AR 3R R & A& LN B B 2 BE
BHETAMNBRE - A=
TT—F A —BHBRERAHA
F o HFHEARARK
600,0007T (48 & 7 & ¥ &9
561,0007T) - &M X T2
EHEAZHERHEH

BER=-_TT=F—ANA
R zHEERE  PHERRE
RAEEHRAEWEHRE TN
MNERAR  BZET=F—
A—BREAH—F B8FH
& A/ AR # 7550005t (42
&R #1706,0007T) ©
SN2 EHEEAZHERH
FHE R

RER-_ZZT=F—AhA
R zHEERE  PHERRE
[ & #& LM B B # M
40(iii) () FTilE QR iz 35—
EOREREFTAMNEA
Al BEZTTE=F—HA—H
BRHARF  SFHSAA
R #960,0007T (HE 1B
#7897,0007T) - HE T2 %E
HEAzHERB#ATHE -

R-ZFZ—FAA—R  AMERF
fid T A 2 B B A R M 8 2 5 Zhuhai
Gree Group Corp. Finance Co., Ltd.
RIEZ REBEHAEY1,213,000
T ZERBEFERIEFRE  ER
T _FMA=FTHBHES -
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40.

41.

42.

Connected and Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Related party transactions

During the year, the Ferry Company paid RMB1,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,402,000) to the Minority Shareholder in
respect of the provision of management services, based on a certain
percentage of the turnover of Ferry Company. In addition, the Ferry
Company paid RMB1,124,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,051,000) to the Minority Shareholder for the leases of certain
office premises and port facilities. The lease rentals were calculated

by reference to the respective tenancy agreements.

As at 30 April 2003, the Group had a balance due from the Minority
Shareholder. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed terms of repayment. The Minority Shareholder has agreed with
the Group that the amount receivable from the Minority Shareholder
of HK$6,216,000 (2002: HK$6,232,000) will be settled by the
Minority Shareholder’s entitlement to future dividends from the Ferry
Company (note 26 to the financial statements).

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements, due to
the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs during the current
year, the accounting treatment and presentation of certain items in
the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 26 August 2003.
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FRN - B AAERRBHERERSIZ
B AR EERE e TAESERADH
A% B~ AR #1,500,0007T (8 & R
B ¥EA1,402,0007T) ° SN - B A
AIEMBEES FTHARZ KB O RIER
DERR R F A ARM,124,0007T (46
ERE®41,051,0007T) - L&
EZHEZACZHEWSETE -

RZZE=FWMA=+H AEEE
FAOBBEZRIBEGEERE © &
EEHBAEET R RERTEER
Bl LPERIEEAEE -—HAE
FEU A EAR R 2 518 =75 6,216,000
T (ZZEZ=F: %E¥6,232,0007T) 1
ABRE A& ER A A2 RKRE
XA (BA 75 R MTaE26) ©
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